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Historic Riverton, Alabama 

 

 
Sunday at the Riverton Depot 

(Copy of an original painting by John W. Morgan, Florence, Alabama) 

 
This history of Riverton is an accumulation of many years of collecting 
records, documents, maps, and old newspaper articles.  Also, thanks to 
many family and friends for their help, especially Jason Dennis who has 
contributed significantly in capturing accounts of this beautiful and 
exciting part of our Alabama history.  
 

Jason has created an outstanding website. Please visit the Riverton-
Rosetrail web site at  http://rosetrail.org 
 

Dr. Ed Vengrouskie, Georgetown, Texas USA 
(email: edvengrouskie@gmail.com) 

                                                
                                          2022 
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Preface 
 

If one looks at the northwestern most part of Alabama, you will see a peninsula formed  
 
by the east branch of Bear Creek, and the south bank of the Tennessee River. At that  
 
point is the site of Riverton, Alabama (see maps below). Riverton has undergone several  
 
names changes, Riverton 1890 to present; Chickasaw from 1851 to 1890, and Point  
 
Smith from 1846 to 1851.  Once an important river port, much of historic Riverton today  
 
is hidden beneath the waters of Pickwick Lake, but that which remains testifies to her  
 
rich heritage. 
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Indian Nations of Northwest Alabama 

 

The area of northwest Alabama was originally occupied by both Cherokee and  
 
Chickasaw Indians. The boundary between the great Cherokee and Chickasaw Indian  
 
nations was Caney Creek, which flows in a south to north direction, eight- and one-half  
 
miles east of the town of Cherokee, Alabama. Lands east of the line were Cherokee  
 
Territory, and lands west of the boundary were Chickasaw Territory; however, the land  
 
lying between Occochapo (Chickasaw name for Bear Creek) six miles west of present- 
 
day Cherokee, Alabama, and Caney Creek, was disputed between the two tribal  
 
nations.  In the early 1700's three Cherokee villages were located in this disputed  
 
territory (one near the original village of Point Smith and Chickasaw). In addition, the  
 
Chickasaw claimed lands including all northwest Alabama on both sides of the  
 
Kallamuchee (Chickasaw name for the Tennessee River) as far east as present da 
 
Morgan County Alabama. 
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(Historical Tidbit) 
The name Tennessee River appears on French maps from the late 17th century with the 
names Caquinampo or Kasqui. Maps from the early 18th century call it Cussate, 
Hogohegee, Callamaco, and Acanseapi. A 1755 British map showed the Tennessee 
River as the "River of the Cherokees." By the late 18th century, it had come to be called 
"Tennessee," a name derived from the Cherokee village named Tanasi 
(https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Tennessee_River) 
 
In 1790, Major John Doughty, conveying a message from the President of the United  
 
States to the southwestern Indians, was ambushed by a party of Creek and Shawnee  
 
warriors at the mouth of Bear Creek.  This attack prompted the Secretary of War to  
 
propose the establishment of a military post at the mouth of Bear Creek in 1791. This  
 
military post was never established.  
 
The government of the United States encouraged the Chickasaw Indians to adapt the  
 
simple arts of civilized life, such as farming, weaving, and the building of homes along  
 
with the improvements of property of their own. To direct them in these things, to  
 
represent the government, and to promote friendly relations, the Federal Government  
 
employed agents and stationed them at important locations. The county's south  
 
boundary was approximately where it is today; the northern boundary was the  
 
Tennessee River (including all of the area of present-day Colbert County); the east  
 
boundary is approximately where it is today; but the west boundary was approximately  
 
fifteen miles east of where it is today.  
 
The western boundary adjoined the Chickasaw Indian territory (see maps below). 
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1824 Map of Alabama 
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Chickasaw Agents  
 
The first agent to be appointed in the Chickasaw Nation was Samuel Mitchell. He was  
 
appointed in April 1799 and served until the summer of 1806 (Natchez Trace Parkway  
 
Survey,1941. p. 68) and was replaced by Benjamin. F. Smith. The first agency of the  
 
Chickasaw was situated just south of the town of Houlka, Mississippi (Natchez Trace  
 
Parkway Survey 1941, p.68). In 1825 a new agency house was built near Malone Creek.  
 
In 1829 Benjamin. F. Smith was replaced by Benjamin F. Reynolds, who were friends  
 
with President Andrew Jackson.   
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In August 1830 a conference was held in the Presbyterian Church at Franklin,  
 
Tennessee.  This conference was attended by leaders of the Chickasaw Nation, John  
 
Coffee, John Eaton and President Andrew Jackson. The Chickasaw Indian's were told  
 
they must give up their land in Alabama and Mississippi or the white man would take it.   
 

Two years later on October 20, 1832, a treaty was completed between the Federal  
 
Government and the Chickasaw Nation at Pontotoc, Mississippi. It was not until 1834  
 
that the Chickasaw Indians were to receive allotments of land for single men and for  
 
families.  A single Indian man received a section of 640 acres; families of five or fewer  
 
members received 1,200 acres.  The allotments increased in size in proportion to family  
 
size.  Lands not assigned were put up for sale as Public Lands, with proceeds, after  
 
deduction for sale and removal expense, to go tthe Chickasaw Tribe. John Bell, son of a  
 
former missionary to th Chickasaws, was appointed Surveyor General of the Chickasaw  
 
Cession. The land was surveyed in 1833 and was offered for sale by the government in  
 
1836. Much of the land in the area was originally granted as allotments to individual  
 
Indians.  
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(Historical Tidbit) 
Oct 6 1840 – President Van Burean approved Pamela Carter Reynolds as the owner of 
the land covering, reservation 539, Rng 015W Twp 002 Sec 14th the future site of Point 
Smith.In addition Pamela was granted ownership of Rng 13W Twp 013W Sec 16, 19, 
21, and 22. Pamela was the great grand daughter of Levi Colbert. 

 
 

 
                       Rng 015W Twp 002 Sec 14- 457 acers 

 
Rng 13W Twp 0025 Secs 16, 19, 21 & 22 -1,048 acers 

 
Benjamin Reynolds purchased the section of land where the Chickasaw Agency stood  
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and continued a trading post and store, and became the postmaster of the Bennekhinnah  
 
Post Office on site, in October 1833. In 1852 the site and post office name were changed  
 
to Newport. 
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Point Smith Village 
 

Sometimes before 1840, Henry D. Smith purchased reservation #539 from Pamela  
 
Reynolds, and established a small village called Point Smith, and its first United States  
 
Post Office was established on December 28, 1846, with Oliver E. Spencer as the  
 
postmaster.  
 
The Smith Family traded with the Indians, and bought furs and from frontiers men that  
 
hunted along the many streams in the deep hollows and the woods of Northwest  
 
Alabama (Hays,1996). 
 
Thomas F. Buchanan was one of the first settlers of Point Smith. He came from Tyronne  
 
County, Ireland and with his young bride, built a home there. He also built the first store,  
 
and for nearly a half a century, it was in business. 

 

Chickasaw Village Created 
 

The Chickasaw Land Company was formed on July 7, 1850.  Isaac Lane, one of the four  
 
owners, bought large holdings from the early settlers of the area, to include lands owned  
 
by Henry D. Smith.  The company laid off the town of Chickasaw in blocks, each  
 
containing one acre. The name of the post office was officially changed from Point  
 
Smith to Chickasaw on May 26, 1851. Many of official documents list  
 
Chickasaw and Chickasaw Village. 

 
(Historical Tidbit) 
Alabama Legistrative Acts 1847-1848 Part 1 of 1 Number 7 page 50.To change the 
name of the town of Point Smith, in the County of Franklin, and to incorporate the same. 
Section 1. Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the State of 
Alabama, General Assembly convened, That the name of the town of Point Smith, in the 
county of Franklin, be and the same here-by changed to that of Chickasaw. Approved 
March 4, 1848 
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Civil War Years  

 
Throughout the early Civil War years (1861-1862) Chickasaw became a strategic point  
 
on the Tennessee River.  A five-gun confederate battery (Chickasaw Battery- official  
 
designation; Robertson’s Dent’s Artillery Battery from Pensacola, Florida) was emplaced  
 
within large earth mounds (later to be discovered as an old Cherokee Indian mound), to  
 
protect the nearby railroad bridge that crossed Bear Creek. 
 

                                   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Prepared by Dr Ed Vengrouskie, edvengrouskie@gmail.com 
 2022 

15 

Confederate Artillery Emplacements 

 
 

The Chickasaw Battery was frequently bombarded by union gun boats. During the Battle  
 
of Shiloh (April 1862), the five Chickasaw battery guns were displaced (See below) 
 

APRIL  1,  1862. 

                                          Expedition  from  Pittsburg  Landing,  Tenn.,  to  Eastport,  Miss.,and  
                                          Chickasaw,  Ala. 
                         Report  of  Brig.  Gen.  William  Tecumseh  Sherman,  U.  S.  Army. 

                          HDQRS.  SHERMAN'S  DIVISION,  Camp  Shiloh,  near  Pittsburg  Landing,    
 Tenn.,  April  2,  1862                                               

  About  1  p.  m.  the  Cairo  commenced  shelling  the  battery  above  the    
  Mount of  Indian  Creek  but  elicited  no  reply.  She  proceeded  up  the  river    
  steadily  and  cautiously,  followed  close  by  the  Tyler  and  Lexington,   
  all  throwing shells  at  the  points  where  on  former  visits  of  the  gunboats   
  the  enemy's batteries were  found.  In  this  order  and  followed  till  it  was   
  demonstrated that  all the enemy's  batteries,  including  that  at  Chickasaw,  
  were  abandoned 

 

                   USS Cairo 
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           USS Tyler 

               
                                                               

                   USS Lexington 
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 March 19, 1862 

 
Post-Civil War 

 
After the Civil War economic growth in Chickasaw was slow.  In 1867 Colbert County  
 
was created from Franklin County. It was named in honor of the Chickasaw Chief  
 
George Colbert.  

 

River Ferry at Chickasaw 
 

Around 1860, Thomas Spencer (my 3rd great grandfather), a resident  
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of Chickasaw since 1855, was granted a charter from Franklin and  
 
Lauderdale counties to operate a Public Ferry across the Tennessee  
 
River from Chickasaw to Waterloo, Alabama. The Public Ferry was  
 
prosperous business, and by 1890 (the boom days of Riverton),  
 
Thomas Spencer also built, owned, and operated the handsome  
 
Spencer Hotel. 
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Muscle Shoals Canal (Riverton) 
 
Survey and planning began in 1871 and contracts were awarded in 1875  
 
and it was opened November 10, 1890. 
 
The Riverton Lock, also known as the Colbert Shoals Lock, as the entrance 
 
to Colbert Shoals Canal, a low water alternative route around Colbert and  
 
Bee Tree Shoals on the Tennessee River. 
 

 
                                 Colbert Shoals Lift near Riverton 

 
The first major upstream landing on the Tennessee River after leaving 
 
leaving Paducah, Kentucky, was Riverton, located on the east side of the  
 
junction of the Tennessee River and Bear Creek, across Bear Creek from  
 
Eastport.  
 
In the late 1890s Muscle Shoals Canal was nearing completion; this traversed  
 
the other major shoals above Florence, Alabama, and Chattanooga, Tennessee.  
 
In 1891, George Washington Goethals, an engineer and US Army officer, was  
 
promoted to captain and was assigned the oversight of completing Muscle  
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Shoals Canal. Goethals developed a design for a single high lift lock to be  
 
located at the downstream end of Colbert Shoals canal at Riverton. Goethals  
 
was successful in convincing the Army Corps of Engineers that the high lift lock  
 
was feasible and was eventually given the approval for its construction.  
 
 

    
                                           The Leighton News Jan 15, 1897 
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                                                 North Alabamina Sept 21, 1905 
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                                  The North Alabamaian. Oct 5, 1905 

 

 
                                         The Florence Herald, Dec 22, 1905 

 
Riverton Lock began operation on November 11, 1911, and at its completion was  
 
the highest lift lock in the world. Completed dimensions are 80 feet (24 m)  
 
wide and 350 feet (110 m) inside the miter sills with a lift of 26 feet (7.9 m). 
  
(https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Riverton_Lock) 
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The Florence Herald, March 9, 1923 

 
 

 
                                             The Florence Herald, May 18, 1923 
 
Riverton Lock was flooded when Pickwick Landing Dam was completed on February 8, 
1938  

 
Booming Riverton 

 
In 1887, Alfred Parrish of Philadelphia with British financial backing bought up all the land  
 
in Chickasaw and laid off a town; changed the name to Riverton; and proceed to build a  
 
railroad to connect with Memphis, Tennessee and Charleston, South Carolina intending  
 
for this railroad to be part of a mail line from Paducah, Kentucky to Birmingham,  
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Alabama.  

 
Riverton Land Company 

 
The Riverton Land Company was filed as an Exists Alabama Domestic Corporation  
 
on April 22, 1890. The filing number was 788-714 with five principles on record. The  
 
principles are Chas Blocker, Campbell P. Thomas, Thomas L. Carter, John A. Morris  
 
and Alfred Parrish. The Riverton Railroad was completed to Riverton in 1890 from  
 
Memphis and Charleston Railroad. It was built by the Northern Alabama Railway  
 
Company during Riverton’s boom with Riverton Land Company. The railroad  
 
carried passengers and products to and from Riverton Junction and the river port.  
 
The train was slow moving and stopped frequently. 
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   Tuscumbia, Alabama 

  Friday, May 28, 1890 

 

   Booming Riverton 

 
Riverton is booming now in real 
earnest. 
 
The steamer C Smith makes regular 
trips between Sheffield and Riverton, 
stopping at all way landings. These 
dailytrips will be continued until after 
the Riverton land sale, which will 
occur June 3,4 and 5. 
 
The town is now replatted and laid 
out in city style and more than a 
hundred men and teams are 
employed in grading the streets. 
 
Charles Schumacher, of the city, with 
a large force of mechanics is actively 
engaged on the new hotel and will 
have it completed in time to entertain 
those attending the sale. 
 
There under contract and in course of 
construction twelve two-story four 
room cottages and twenty-five two 
room dwellings to, the latter to be 
occupied by laborers as rapidly as 
finished. A number of business 
houses are also going up. 
 
Mr Kelly of Russellville began work 
this morning building a line of 
telegraph from Hasting Junction to 
Riverton, and the new town will soon 
be connected with the rest of the 
world by wire, rail and xxxx. 
 
Riverton is a certainty, and that it will 
be a success is a foregoing 
conclusion  
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The State of Ala 

Colbert County } K.A. Chakinuer, C.E. 

                            hereby certify that this  

     foregoing in the true abd correct 

      plat in much of the lands, the 
      xxxx party of 

                   being in Sec 1432R 15W 

      in said County of Colbert known 

      as the City of Riverton, formally 

      Chickasaw made by me it is 

       have given under my hands 

       this the 3rd day of June 1890. 

                               K.A. Chakinuer, C.E 

 
      Subscribed and sworn in before 

      me this the 3rd day of June A.D., 

      1890. 

 The Riverton Land Co,    Mr. H. Jones. 

  By Minen Scurel             Notary Public 

  General Manager            Colbert County 

  Acting President                 â Seal 

    
The State of Ala 

Colbert County }   I, Mr H. Jones 

  a Notary Public of said county, 

  in said State, hereby certify  

   that Minen Scurel, General 

   Manager & acting President 

   of the Riverton Land Company, 

  where name is aasigned to the 

foregoing states in  xxxx, and who 

  is  known to me, acknowledged 

  before me on this day, that being 

  in asmuch of the contents of the 

  foregoing plot on map (with 

  streets, alleys, blocks and lots 

  as thereas laid off, marked 

  and numbered) when fairly 

   adopted the same on the  

   day, the same  year date. 

  Given under my hand this 

 3rd day of June A.D. 1890. 

                      

                         Mr. H, Jones, 

                         Notary Public 

                         Colber County 

        â Seal 

 

 

 

                                          Map Record 

        27th    August         90 

                 John A. Steele 
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                                               Expanded View of the Previous Map 

 
 

 

Riverton landing did a thriving business for it was said that the navigation from Paducah  
 
to the landing was equaled in this country only to that of the lower Mississippi and the  
 
Hudson rivers.   
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                             1896 Map of Riverton and surrounding area 

 
 

 
 

Epedmic in Riverton  (reported 1 October 1897) 

 
Newspaper Clippings from Leighton News 1894-1903 

 
Tennesse Valley Authority and Building of Pickiwck Dam 

When approval of Pickwick Landing Dam was announced in February of  

1934, the Tuscumbia Times proclaimed, “President Roosevelt gladdened the  

heart of every man.” And it is true that most local residents, eager for good- 

paying jobs, celebrated the coming construction of both dam and reservoir.  

However, their enthusiasm was somewhat tempered by another, less  
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appealing consequence of the construction effort—the loss and relocation of  

hundreds of homes, farms and families. 

The vast reservoir created by the Pickwick Landing Dam affected sections of Hardin  

County, Tennessee; Tishomingo County, Mississippi; and Colbert and Lauderdale  

counties in Alabama. Prior to construction, TVA surveyed and mapped  

approximately 100,000 acres of land. The agency then acquired more than 63,700  

acres, clearing about 12,590 acres of this land of trees, buildings and fences. 

TVA studied the effects of the dam and reservoir on the four affected counties and  

concluded that the building of Pickwick Landing Dam would result in the partial  

flooding of two towns, Waterloo and Riverton, both in Alabama. Eventually 506  

families were relocated and cemeteries, highways, bridges and utility lines were  

either moved or protected. The price of progress was the dissolution of home and  

community. 

While these families were forced to move, the relocation was no southern diaspora.  

It appears most families stayed close to their roots. Many of these families found it  

difficult to solve their own relocation problems, precisely because they preferred to  

remain in the immediate area, where opportunities were scarce. The communities of  

Waterloo and Riverton were, prior to the construction of Pickwick Landing Dam,  

dependent on agricultural income derived from lands that would be included in the  

reservoir area. Riverton was partially supported by employment on the Colbert  

Shoals Canal Lock. Waterloo derived some support from the lumber business, but it  

was estimated that all marketable timber would be cut within two or three years. 

 (https://www.tva.com/about-tva/our-history/built-for-the-people/the-lost-towns-of-
pickwick 
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